UNION LEAGUE CLUB

OF

NEW YORK.

THE

CHARTER, BY-LAWS,

AND

LIST OF MEMBERS.

JULY, 1865.

CLUB. HOUSE, UNION SQUARE,

No. 26 East Seventeenth Street.

1865.

Ex Libris

SEYMOUR DURST

t' Fort nieuw Amsterdam op de Manhatans



FORT NEW AMSTERDAM

(NEW YORK), 1651.

When you leave, please leave this book Because it has been said "Ever'thing comes t' him who waits Except a loaned book."

AVERY ARCHITECTURAL AND FINE ARTS LIBRARY
GIFT OF SEYMOUR B. DURST OLD YORK LIBRARY

"UNION LEAGUE CLUB"

OF

NEW YORK.

THE CHARTER, BY-LAWS,

AND

LIST OF MEMBERS.

JULY, 1865.

CLUB HOUSE, UNION SQUARE, No. 26 East Seventeenth Street. 1865. GFFSITE +18 2725 . N.5 USA 1886m

OFFICERS FOR 1865.

President.

CHARLES H. MARSHALL.

Vice-Presidents.

JOHN C. GREEN.
HENRY W. BELLOWS,
WILLARD PARKER,
ALEXANDER T. STEWART,
JAMES W. BEEKMAN,
GEORGE BANCROFT,

SAMUEL B. RUGGLES, WILLIAM CULLEN BRYANT, CHARLES BUTLER. WILLIAM E. DODGE, ROBERT LENOX KENNEDY, WILLIAM K. STRONG.

Secretary.

OTIS D. SWAN.

Trensurer.

WILLIAM J. HOPPIN.

Executibe Committee.

GEORGE GRISWOLD.
GEORGE CABOT WARD,
FRANKLIN H. DELANO,
HENRY L. PIERSON,
JOHN A. WEEKS,
RICHARD M. HUNT,
GEORGE W. BLUNT,

WILLIAM E. DODGE. JR, FRANK E. HOWE, JOHN JAY, HENRY E. CLARK, DAVID VAN NOSTRAND, THEODORE ROOSEVELT, ELLIOT C. COWDIN,

LE GRAND B. CANNON.
THE SECRETARY AND TREASURER, EX OFFICIO.

Committee on Admissions.

GEORGE T. STRONG, N. PENDLETON HOSACK, CORNELIUS R. AGNEW,

THOMAS H. FAILE, DUDLEY B. FULLER, CHRISTIAN E. DETMOLD,

GEORGE BLISS, Jr.
THE SECRETARY AND TREASURER, Ex Officio.

Committee on Publications.

FRANCIS LIEBER, EDWARD WALKER, PARKE GODWIN, PHILIP REYNOLDS, GEORGE P. PUTNAM, SHEPPARD GANDY,

WILLIAM ALLEN BUTLER.

Library Committee.

SAMUEL OSGOOD,

| ALBERT MATTHEWS,

Pouse Committee.

GEORGE GRISWOLD,

JOHN A. WEEKS.

Inbitation Committee.

FRANK E. HOWE,

GEORGE W. BLUNT, DAVID VAN NOSTRAND.

CHARTER.

AN ACT TO INCORPORATE "THE UNION LEAGUE CLUB"
OF THE CITY OF NEW YORK.

PASSED FEBRUARY 16TH, 1865.

The People of the State of New York, represented in Senate and Assembly, do enact as follows:

Section 1. Cornelius R. Agnew, Horatio Allen, James W. Beekman, Henry W. Bellows, Francis B. Cutting, John A. Dix, Wolcot Gibbs, John C. Green, George Griswold, David Hoadley, Murray Hoffman, William J. Hoppin, Charles King, Charles H. Marshall, Willard Parker, George T. Strong, Jonathan Sturges, Otis D. Swan, Moses Taylor, and such other persons as now are members of an association in the city of New York called "The Union League Club," and such persons as hereafter shall become members of the corporation hereby created, are constituted a body corporate by the name of "The Union LEAGUE CLUB," to be located in the city of New York, to promote, encourage, and sustain, by all proper means, absolute and unqualified loyalty to the Government of the United States, to discountenance and rebuke, by moral and social influences, all disloyalty to said Government, and every attempt against the integrity of the nation; and in furtherance of these objects, to establish and maintain a Library and a Gallery of Art and Military Trophies, especially devoted to the perpetuation and illustration of the patriotic services and sacrifices by which the existing struggle against rebellion has been characterized.

Sec. 2. Said corporation shall have power to make and adopt a constitution, by-laws, rules and regulations, for the admission, suspension, and expulsion of its members, and their government, the collection of fees and dues, the number and election of its officers, and to define their duties, and for the safe keeping of its property, and, from time to time, to alter, modify, or change, such constitution, by-laws, rules and regulations. Until an election shall be held pursuant to such constitution, by-laws, rules and regulations, the officers, for the time being, of the association mentioned in the first section of this act, shall be the officers of the corporation hereby created.

Sec. 3. Said corporation may purchase and hold and lease any real or personal estate, necessary and proper for the purposes of its incorporation, provided they shall not hold any real estate the value of which shall exceed two hundred thousand dollars.

Sec. 4. Said corporation shall possess the general powers and be subject to the restrictions and liabilities prescribed in the third title of the eighteenth chapter of the first part of the Revised Statutes.

Sec. 5. This act shall take effect immediately.

UNION LEAGUE CLUB,

IN NEW YORK.

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION.

- 1. The condition of membership shall be absolute and unqualified loyalty to the Government of the United States, and unwavering support of its efforts for the suppression of the Rebellion.
- 2. The primary object of the Association shall be to discountenance and rebuke, by moral and social influences, all disloyalty to the Federal Government, and to that end the members will use every proper means in public and private.
- 3. We pledge ourselves, by every means in our power, collectively and individually, to resist to the uttermost every attempt against the territorial integrity of the nation.

Digitized by the Internet Archive in 2013

BY-LAWS.

OF OFFICERS AND THEIR DUTIES.

- 1. The Officers of the Union League Club shall be a President, twelve Vice-Presidents; a Secretary, a Treasurer, three Auditors, and the members of the following Standing Committees: Executive Committee, Committee on Admissions, Committee on Publications, Committee on Arts and Relics, Committee on Library; all of whom shall be elected by the members of the Club, at the annual meetings, and shall serve until their successors shall have been elected respectively.
- 2. The President, or, in his absence, the Vice-President senior in order of election, and present, shall preside at all meetings of the Club. In the absence of the President and all the Vice-Presidents, a presiding officer shall be chosen without ballot from the members of the Club.
- 3. The Secretary shall keep a record of the proceedings of the Club, and of the Executive Committee and the Committee on Admissions (of which Committees he shall be, ex officio, a member), and of all matters of which a record shall be deemed advisable by the Club or by said Committees. The records of the Secretary, except those of the proceedings of the Committee on Admissions, shall, at all reasonable times, be open to the inspection of any member of the Club. It shall be the duty of the Secretary to notify members of their election, to keep a roll of the members of the Club, to issue notices for all meetings of the Club,

and to conduct the correspondence. He shall also be the keeper of the seal of the Club.

- 4. The Treasurer shall collect, and, under the direction of the Executive Committee, disburse the funds. He shall keep the accounts of the Club in books belonging to it, which shall be at all times open to the inspection of the Executive Committee; he shall report at every annual meeting, and oftener, if required, on the state of the funds. He shall be, ex officio, a member of the Executive Committee and Committee on Admissions.
- 5. The Secretary and Treasurer shall respectively have power, with the approval of the Executive Committee, to employ, at the expense of the Club, such clerical aid as may be necessary in the discharge of their duties.
- 6. The general affairs of the Club shall be managed by the Executive Committee, consisting of fifteen members. The Executive Committee shall, subject in all respects (except as to expenditures) to such instructions and limitations as may be, from time to time, prescribed by the Club, exercise a general superintendence over the internal affairs of the Club; shall control and manage its property, and enforce the preservation of order and obedience to its rules. It shall make all necessary purchases and contracts, but shall have no power to make the Club liable for any debt or debts to an amount exceeding one half that which, at the time of contracting the same, shall be in the Treasurer's hands in cash, and not subject to prior liabilities. It shall also have power to solicit subscriptions of money from loyal persons for the purpose of carrying into effect the objects of the Club. At every annual meeting it shall report its proceedings, and may, at any time, recommend such meas-

ures as it may deem advisable. The Club may, however, at any time, appoint Special Committees for any purpose, and not more than one member of the Executive Committee shall be a member of any single Special Committee.

- 7. The Executive Committee, of which eight shall be a quorum, shall meet, at least, once in every month for the transaction of business. Vacancies may be filled by the Committee for the residue of the term.
- 8. The Committee on Admissions shall consist of seven members. Vacancies may be filled by the Committee for the residue of the term. The names and residences of all persons proposed for admission, with the name and signature of the member proposing them, and date of posting, shall be first posted, in a conspicuous place in the Club, House, at least fifteen days. They shall then be referred to the Committee on Admissions, the proceedings of which Committee thereon shall be secret and confidential, and no member of such Committee shall be questioned as to the action of the Committee. It shall be the duty of the Committee to make careful examination, and to consider all communications in reference to each individual proposed; they shall pass upon each name separately. The Committee shall fix its own place and time of meeting. At every monthly meeting the Committee shall report the names of such persons proposed as they recommend for admission, and the Club shall thereupon proceed to vote, by ballot, upon the names so recommended. Negative votes to the number of one-quarter of those cast shall exclude any person.
- 9. No person shall be proposed or admitted to be a member of the Club who is not at the time a citizen of the

United States, having the right to vote, and who does not answer to the requirements of the original Articles of Association of the Club, which are as follows:

"The condition of membership shall be absolute and unqualified loyalty to the Government of the United States, and unwavering support of its efforts for the suppression of the Rebellion."

And every person elected a member shall pledge himself to do all in his power to carry out the primary objects of the Club, which are to discountenance and rebuke, by moral and social influences, and by all proper means, both in public and in private, all disloyalty to the Federal Government, and to resist to the uttermost every attempt against the territorial integrity of the nation.

10. No candidate who shall have failed to be elected shall be again proposed for six months.

If any person elected shall not within three months after notice of his election, left at or sent to his address, as specified by the member proposing him, signify his acceptance, sign the roll annexed to the Act of Incorporation, and pay his admission fee and annual dues, he shall be deemed to have declined to become a member.

11. It shall be the duty of the Committee on Publications to publish such papers as shall tend to awaken, extend, and perpetuate the vital faith of the fathers of the Republic, namely, that National Union is necessary to the American people for the preservation of liberty, maintenance of law, security against civil discord, protection from foreign aggression, continuance of social and commercial prosperity, and transmission of national glory; and to impress on the intelligent and educated classes the duty of taking an active part in the conduct of public affairs. Such

Committee shall consist of seven members, and have power to fill vacancies. There shall be a special publication fund distinct from the general fund of the Club, which shall be disbursed by the Treasurer only on the order of the chairman of the Committee on Publications:

- 12. The Library Committee shall consist of seven members, and shall have general charge of the Library and Reading Room, with authority to expend such sums of money upon the same as may be voted therefor by the Executive Committee, or procured by voluntary subscription. It shall have power to fill vacancies for the residue of the term.
- 13. The Committee on Arts and Relics shall consist of seven members, and shall have power to fill vacancies. It shall be the duty of the Committee to expend such sums as shall be appropriated by the Executive Committee, or obtained by voluntary subscription, for procuring works of art and relics, and to make all proper efforts to enlarge and display the collection.
- 14. The duty of the Auditors shall be to audit and settle the accounts of the Treasurer, and to present their report thereof at each annual meeting. They shall have power to fill vacancies in their number, and two of them shall be a quorum.
- 15. Any officer may be removed for cause at any meeting of the Club upon two weeks' notice, and any vacancy in any office may be filled for the residue of the term by the Club, at any meeting thereof, except as herein otherwise provided.

OF MEETINGS.

16. The annual meeting of the Club shall be held on the

second Thursday in January, at 8 o'clock, P. M., for the election of officers, and the transaction of such other business as may come before it. Fifty members shall be a quorum at all meetings of the Club.

- 17. There shall be a monthly meeting, for the election of members, and the transaction of business, on the second Thursday of every month, at 8 P. M.
- 18. Special meetings of the Club may be called at any time by the Executive Committee, and shall be called by the Secretary whenever the President or any Vice President shall be requested to call one by the written request of twenty-five members, setting forth the purpose of such meeting. At any such special meeting no business, other than that specified in the call, shall be considered, except by unanimous consent. Such special meetings shall be called by notice in one or more newspapers.
- 19. At the meetings of the Club, the order of business, so far as the character and nature of the meeting may admit, shall be as follows:
 - 1. Reading the minutes of the last meeting.
 - 2. Reports of Standing Committees.
 - 3. Reports of Special Committees.
 - 4. Election of new members.
 - 5. General business.

But this order of business may be changed by a majority of the meeting.

20. No stranger shall be present at any meeting of the Club, except he shall be specially invited by the sub-committee of the Executive Committee, known as the Committee on Invitations.

- 21. All elections, except as otherwise provided, shall be by ballot, and a majority of votes cast shall be sufficient, except for the election of new members.
 - 22. Proxies shall not be permitted.

OF MEMBERS.

- 23. No member shall receive any salary, emolument, or profit from the funds of the Club.
- 24. No member shall give any money or gratuity to a servant of the Club.
- 25. All resignations shall be made in writing to the Executive Committee; but if made after the second Thursday of January, such resignation shall not discharge the member presenting it from his dues for the current year. All interest in the property of the Club, of members resigning, or otherwise ceasing to be members, shall be vested in the Club.
- 26. If the conduct of a member shall appear to the Executive Committee to be disorderly, or injurious to the interests of the Club, or contrary to its Charter or By-Laws; or if by his acts or conversation he shall seem to the Committee to manifest a spirit of disloyalty to the Government of the United States, the Committee shall inform him thereof in writing, and if the nature of the offence in its opinion require it, request him to resign.
- 27. Should such information or request be disregarded, the Executive Committee shall refer the matter to the next stated meeting of the Club, or to a special meeting thereof; of which reference not less than two weeks written notice shall be given to the offending member.

- 28. At such meeting the nature of the offence shall be considered, and the member complained of may be censured or expelled by a vote of a majority of the members present. A motion involving censure or expulsion shall be decided by ballot.
- 29. The admission fee of members shall be fifty dollars. The annual dues of members hereafter accruing shall be thirty dollars, payable in advance, on the second Thursday of January, at which time the fiscal year shall commence. If not paid within thirty days thereafter, the name of the defaulter shall be posted by the Treasurer in a conspicuous place in the Club-House; and should be neglect payment, without good cause, until the first day of April, he shall ipso facto cease to be a member. Provided, that upon his written application, and the payment of all dues to the date thereof, the Executive Committee may, upon such terms as it may deem proper, remit the penalty of this By-Law; of all which the Secretary shall make a minute. And provided, further, that the penalty of this By-Law shall not apply to the case of a resident member who may be ill or absent from the city of New York.
- 30. Any member who has paid an admission fee and the annual dues for one year, and who is absent from the City of New York for a continuous period of a year, shall be exempted from the payment of the annual dues for the period of his absence, if he shall give previous written notice to the Treasurer of his intention so to be absent.
- 31. Persons who are citizens of, and residing at any place fifty miles from New York City, and also officers of the Army and Navy of the United States, wherever residing, otherwise being eligible, may, with the concurrence of

BY-LAWS.

the Committee on Admissions, be admitted by the Club, upon payment of half the rates hereinbefore mentioned; provided that, when elected, it shall be announced to the Club to which class the applicants belong, and that when any person so elected ceases to belong to said class he shall thereafter be liable to pay the full annual dues.

- 32. Persons who shall be elected members of the Club after six months of any fiscal year shall have expired, shall pay only half the amount of dues for that fiscal year otherwise required.
- 33. The Club may at any regular meeting elect non-residents as honorary members, who shall be nominated by the Executive Committee. Such honorary members shall have all the privileges of the Club except voting at meetings, and being eligible for office.

OF STRANGERS.

- 34. A member may personally introduce non-residents to the rooms of the Club for a fortnight, their names, and that of the member introducing them, and the date of such introduction, having been first entered in a book to be kept for that purpose.
- 35. The Executive Committee may give a written invitation to any stranger, which shall entitle him to visit the Club-House for one month, or such longer period as the Committee may deem proper.
- 36. Residents of the city of New York, not being members, shall not be admitted to the rooms of the Club more than once.
 - 37. No person, except a non-resident foreigner, shall be

admitted into the Club-House, who does not give his unwavering support to the Government; and if any person disloyal to the Government of the United States be knowingly introduced to the Club-House by a member of the Club, such member shall be expelled for the offence.

MISCELLANEOUS.

- 38. No person shall take from the Club-House a newspaper, pamphlet, book, or other article the property of the Club, nor mutilate, deface, or destroy the same.
- 39. Books, pamphlets, or newspapers, shall not be removed from the reading and drawing rooms.
- 40. Any motion or resolution offered for the consideration of the Club shall, at the request of any member, be reduced to writing before it is acted upon.
- 41. The Club shall have a seal, badge and standard, which shall be devised by the Executive Committee and approved by the Club.
- 42. A By-Law of the Club may be amended, or a new By-Law made, at any regular meeting of the Club, the proposer having posted upon the notice-board the words of the proposed alteration or addition for, at least, thirty days immediately preceding said meeting, when, if two-thirds of those present shall vote in favor of the proposed alteration or amendment, the same shall be adopted.
- 43. The Executive Committee shall have power to make such other regulations, not inconsistent with the Charter or these By-Laws, as may be necessary for the protection of the property of the Club, and the preservation of good order.

HONORARY MEMBERS.

HIS EXCELLENCY ABRAHAM LINCOLN,

President of the United States.

LIEUTENANT-GENERAL U. S. GRANT, U. S. A.

MAJOR-GENERAL GEORGE MEADE, U. S. A.

MAJOR-GENERAL ROBERT ANDERSON, U.S.A.

MAJOR-GENERAL A. E. BURNSIDE, U. S. A.

- " W. S. HANCOCK, U. S. A.
- " H. E. WRIGHT, U. S. A.
- " G. K. WARREN, U. S. A.
- " W. F. SMITH, U. S. A.
- " W. T. SHERMAN, U. S. A.



LIST OF MEMBERS.

Abbott, Robert
Abeel, John H.
Acton, Thomas C.
Adriance, John
Agnew, A. G.
Agnew, Cornelius R.
Albinola, G.
Alger, Charles C.
Allen, Geo. C.
Allen, Horatio
Allen, Jos.
Allen, Wm. M.
Ames, Isaac
Andrews, Rufus F.
Anthon, Geo. C.
Appleton, Daniel F.
Appleton, Wm. H.
Arnold, Benj. G.
Arnoux, Wm. Henry
Astor, J. J., Jr.
Astor, William

Babbitt, B. T.
Babcock, Francis M.
Bacon, D. G.
Bacon, Sherman J.
Bailey, Isaac H.
Bailey, Latimer
Bailey, Nathaniel P.
Baker, A. W.
Baker, A. W.
Baldwin, Moses G.
Bancroft, George
Bancroft, J. D.
Baner, W. J.
Banks, S. A.
Banks, WM.
Banks, WM. M.
Banks, WM. M.
Banks, WM. A.
Barer, Smith

BARNARD, F. A. P. BARNARD, HORACE BARNARD, S. W. BARNEY, HIRAM BARRETT, WM. C. BARRON, JOHN C. BARRON, THOMAS BECKMAN, HENRY BEDLOW, HENRY BEEBE, CHARLES E. BEEKMAN, GILBERT L.
BEEKMAN, JAMES W.
BELCHER, G. E.
BELCHER, WM. K. BELL, GEORGE BELLOWS, HENRY W. BEND, GEO. H. BENEDICT, E. C.
BENKARD, HENRY R.
BENKARD, J. PHILIP
BENNETT, JOSIAH L.
BENSON, ROBERT BERDELL, ROBERT H. BERLY, FREDERICK BERRY, RICHARD BERRY, N. BETTS, GEORGE F. BIGELOW, J. W. BILLINGS, FREDERICK BILLINGS, O. P. C. BININGER, ANDREW G. BIRD, O. WM. BLAKE, WILLIAM BLAGUE, GLES BLISS, GEO. JR. BLISS, ROBERT BLODGETT, WM. T. BLOOD, HENRY BLUMENTHAL, CHARLES E. BLUNT, EDMUND

BLUNT, GEO. W. BLUNT, ORISON BOCKEE, WM. BOLLES, E. L. BONNEY, BENJ. W. BOOTH, OTIS W. BOOTH, WILLIAM A. BOOTH, WILLIAM T. BORDEN, WM BOTTA, VINCENZO BOWNE, RICHARD H. BOWNE, ROBERT BOWNE, WM. Bradford, G. P. Brague, S. B. BRAY, EDWARD P. BREASTED, ANDREW BREEDEN, BENJ. F. BREEDEN, WM. H. BRETTON, JNO. W. BREWSTER, HENRY BRIDGE, WM. F. BRIDGE, WM. F.
BRIDGHAM, SAMUEL W.
BRISTED, CHARLES ASTOR
BROOKS, ELISHA
BROOKS, JOHN
BROOKS, HENRY J
BROOKS, HENRY J
BROOKS, HENRY J
BROWN, E. F.
BROWN, ELIJAH T.
BROWN, JOHN CROSBY
BROWN, L. B.
BROWN, LEWIS M.
BROWN, T. E.
BROWN, THOMAS G.
BROWNELL, SILAS B. BROWNELL, SILAS B. BRYANT, WM. C. BUCKLEY, J., JR BUDD, WM. A.
BULKLEY, C. A.
BULKLEY, J. E.
BULL, H. K.
BULL, ISAAC M. BUNCE, SEYMOUR A.
BUNKER, WM. E.
BURDETT, D. H.
BURR, A. M.
BURR, EDWIN BUTLER, B. F. BUTLER, CHARLES BUTLER, CHARLES E.

BUTLER, CYRUS
BUTLER, HENRY V.
BUTLER, R.
BUTLER, WILLIAM ALLEN
BUTTERWORTH, J. F.

CAMP, HUGH N. CANNON LE GRAND B. CARLISLE, NATHANIEL D. CARROW, CHAS. CARTER, JAMES C. CARY, W. F. CASE, WATSON E. CHADWICK, JOHN CHAMBERLAIN, DANIEL D. CHAMBERLAIN, E. CHANDLER, NATHAN CHAPIN, E. C. CHAPMAN, H. G. CHAUNCEY, HENRY CHEESMAN, T. M. CHITTENDEN, S. B. CHRISTY, THOMAS
CHURCH, JOHN B.
CHURCH, W. C.
CHURCHILL, TIMOTHY G. CLAPP, JOHN
CLARE, CYRUS
CLARE, HENRY E.
CLEWS, HENRY
CLIFT, SMITH
COCK, EFFINGHAM
CONDUCTOR TO B. CODDINGTON, T. B. COE, S. W. COFFIN, A. M. COGGILL, CHARLES J.
COGGILL, F. W.
COGGILL, H.
COIT, HENRY A. COLEMAN, E. W.
COLLAMORE, EBENEZER COLLANGE, EBENEZEI
COLLINS, BENJAMIN
COLLINS, CHARLES
COLLINS, CHARLES B.
COLLINS, GEO. C.
COLYER VINCENT
CONOVER, GUST. A.
CONSTANTE LAMES M. CONSTABLE, JAMES M. CONSTANT, SAML. S. COOPER, MARVILLE W.

COOPER, PETER
CORSE, ISRAEL
COSTER, CHAS. R.
COWDIN, E. C.
COWLES, E. P.
COZZENS, ABRAM M.
COZZENS, B.
CROMWELL, EDWARD
CROPSEY, J. F.
CROSS, JAMES M.
CROZIER, H. P.
CURTIS, GEORGE WILLIAM
CURTIS, WM. V.
CUSHMAN, G. H.
CUTTING, FRANCIS B.
CUTTING, WALTER L.

Dale, Thomas N.
Darling, C.
Davies, Henry E.
Davis, O. W.
Davis, E. P.
Davisox, E. F.
Day, Henry
De Forest, Benj. L.
De Forest, Geo. B.
De Forest, James G.
De Forest, W. W.
Delafield, Henry
Delano, Franklin H.
Delano, Franklin H.
Denison, C.
Denny, John T.
Denny, Thomas
Denny, Thomas
Denny, Thomas
Denny, Thomas, Jr.
De Peyster, James F.
Desendorf, Wm.
Detaiold, Christian E.
Dewey, S. P.
Dillaber, J. R.
Dodge, Chas. E.
Dodge, Robert
Dodge, Wm. E., Jr.
Dole, Nathaniel
Doremus, T. C.
Dorr, Henry C.
Douglass, A. E.
Dowley, Levi A.

DOWLING, J. W.
DOWS, DAVID
DRAPER, J. H.
DRAPER, S.
DRISLER, HENRY
DUER, DENNING
DUNNEL, J., JR.
DUNNING, EDWIN J.

EASTON, CHARLES
EATON, DORMAN B.
EDGAR, JONATHAN
EDGAR, ROBERT W.
EDWARDS, ALFRED L.
EGLESTON, D. S.
ELLIGIT, H. H.
EMMET, RICHARD S.
EMMET, WM. J.
EVANS, WALTER W.
EVARTS, WM. M.

FAILE, THOMAS HALL FAILE, THOMAS H., JR. FALCONER, JOHN FALES, HALIBURTON FANNING, CHAS. FAULKNER, HIRAM D. FAY, SIGOURNEY W. FEARING, CHARLES N. FEARING, HENRY S. Fellows, George A. FELT, EDMUND S. FERRIS, L. M., JR. FIELD, CYRUS W. FISH, HAMILTON FISHER, NATHANIEL FITCH, EDWARD FITHIAN, F. J. FOBES, ALPHEUS FOGG, WILLIAM H. FOLSOM, GEORGE FOOTE, EDWARD FOOTE, EMERSON FORD, JOHN R. FOSTER, CHARLES W. FOSTER, GEORGE H. FOSTER, J. H. FOWLER, EDMUND FRANCIS, LEWIS FRANKLIN, WALTER M. FREEBORN, W. A.

FRENCH, SAMUEL FRYE, JED. FULLER, DUDLEY B. FULLER, HORACE W.

GADSDEN, H. A. GAILLARD, JOSEPH GALE, THOMAS W. GALLUP, S. M. GAMBRILL, CHARLES D. GANDY, S. GARDNER, H. GAWTRY, H. E. GAWTRY, W. M. GAY, SYDNEY HOWARD GERRY, ELBRIDGE, SR. GIBBS, GEORGE GIBBS, WOLCOTT GIBERT, JAMES F. GILBERT, S. P. GILLESPIE, JAMES S. GLASSEY, S. J. GLOVER, SAML. GODDARD, J. W. GODDARD, F. N. GODKIN, E. L. GODWIN, PARKE GOODHUE, CHARLES C.
GOODMAN, RICHARD
GOURLIE, JOHN H.
GRAFTON, JOSEPH
GRAHAM, J. A.
GRAHAM, J. LORIMER, JR. GRANT, O. DE FOREST GRAY, H. W. GRAY, JAMES GRAY, JOHN GRAY, J. F. GRAYDON, WILLIAM GREELEY, HORACE GREEN, JOHN C. GREGORY, CHARLES E. GRIFFENHAGEN, H. C. GRIFFENHAGEN, H. C GRIFFITH, CHARLES GRINNELL, MOSES H GRISWOLD, B. W. GRISWOLD, GEORGE GRISWOLD, JOHN A. GRISWOLD, J. N. A. GROVES, G. M. GUERNSEY, EGBERT

GUION, WM. H. GUITEAU, J. M.

Habicht, C. E. HAGGERTY, OGLEN HAIGHT, EDWARD HALL, ALVAH HALL, JOHN H. HALL, WM. A. HALSEY, ANTHONY HALSTEAD, JAMES M. HAMILTON, JAMES A. HAMILTON JOHN C. HANDY, PARKER HARBECK, WM. H. HARD, SAMUEL B. HARDON, BENJ. L. HARMS, H. D. HARRIMAN, OLIVER HARTLEY, MARCELLUS HASKELL, SAMUEL HASTINGS, G. G. HATCH, GEO. W. HAVEN, GEO. GRISWOLD HAVEN, J. WOODWARD HAVENS, R. N. HAWKINS, DEXTER A. HAWKINS, RUSH C. HAYDEN, NATHANIEL HECKSCHER, CHAS. A. HEDDEN, JOSIAH HEINEMAN, EMIL HERRICK, J. H. HERRICK, WILLIAM HILL, G. WALDO HITCH, HENRY F. HITCHCOCK, THOMAS HOADLEY, DAVID HOAG, DANIEL T. HOEY, JOHN HOFFMAN, MURRAY HOLBROOKE, JOHN G. · HOLMES, SAML. HOLT, PHILETUS H. HOOPER, E. W. Hope, George T. HOPPIN, HAMILTON HOPPIN, WILLIAM J. HOSACK, N. PENDLETON Howe, Frank E. HOWLAND, HORACE

HOWLAND, JOSEPH
HOWLAND, MEREDITH
HOYT, ALFRED M.
HOYT, MARK
HUBBELL, H. W.
HUMBERT, A.
HUNT, CHARLES H.
HUNT, LEAVITT
HUNT, RICHARD M.
HUTTON, BENJ. H.
HYATT, STEPHEN
HYDE, SAMUEL T.

INGALLS, HENRY T. IRVING, PIERRE M. ISELIN, ADRIAN

Jackson, James L.
Jackson, Joseph C.
Jaffray, Edward S.
Jay, John
Jerome, Leonard W.
Jessup, Morris K.
Johnson, Wm. Templeton
Johnston, James Boorman
Jones, F. M.
Jones, George
Jones, John D.
Jones, John Q.
Jones, L. L.
Jones, Wm. P.
Joy, Charles A.
Judson, Charles G.

KELLY, JAMES
KENDALL, I. C.
KENNEDY, JOHN A.
KENNEDY, ROBERT LENOX
KENSETT, JOHN F.
KETCHUM, EDGAR
KING, A. GRACIE
KING, EDWARD
KING, JOHN A.
KING, OLIVER KANE
KING, WM. H.
KINGSLAND, CHARLES P.
KNAPP, CHARLES
KNAPP, GIDEON LEE
KNAPP, GIDEON LEE
KNEVALS, C. B.
KNOEDLER, J.

KUHNE, FREDERICK

LAIMBEER, WM., JR.
LAMBERT, WM. G.
LANDON, CHARLES G.
LANE, GEO. W.
LANE, JOSIAH
LANE, J. H.
LANIER, J. H.
LANIER, J. F. D.
LAWBENGE, ALFRED 1 LAWRENCE, ALFRED N. LAWRENCE, JAMES W. Lawson, John D. LEARNED, EDWARD LELAND, FRANCIS LEE, GIDEON LEE, J. BOWERS LEE, W. CREIGHTON LEE, WM. H. LEMIST, G. H. LEONARD, C. H. LE ROY, DANIEL LE ROY, HERMAN R. LEVERETT, JOSIAH S. LIEBER, FRANCIS LILLIE, C. H. LINSLEY, J. H. LIPPITT, HENRY LIVERMORE, CHARLES F. LIVINGSTON, H. T. LOCKWOOD, ALFRED LORD, GEO. DE FORREST LORD, J. T. LORD, J. COUPER LOTHROP, JEREMIAH LOVELL, LEANDER N. Low, A. A. LUDINGTON, C. H. LYON, SAMUEL E.

MABBATT, SAML. R.
MACOMBER, EDWARD
MACY, FRANCIS H.
MACY, JOHN H.
MACY, WM. H., JR.
MAGHEE, THOS. H.
MAN, A. P.
MANGAM, D. R.
MANICE, W. D. F.
MANING, JOHN A.
MARKS, CHARLES P.

Marsh, John A. MARSHALL, CHARLES H. MARSHALL, D. D. T. MARTIN, ISAAC P. MARTIN, JOHN C. MARTIN, WM. MATHEWS, ALBERT
MAXWELL, WM. H.
MCCURDY, RICHARD A.
MCCURDY, ROBERT H.
MCKAYE, JAMES
MCLEAN, SAMUEL McMartin, P. MEAD, WM. A. MELVAIN, ROBERT C. MERRIAM, CLINTON L. MERSEREAU, J. W. MEYER, C. MINTURN, EDWARD
MINTURN, JOHN W.
MINTURN, ROBERT B. MINTURN, ROBERT B.
MITCHELL, CORNELIUS B.
MONTROSS, WM.
MOONEY, WILLIAM
MOORE, FRANK
MOORE, LUCIUS
MOORE, SAMUEL C.
MOORE, WM. H. H.
MORGAN, E. D., JR.
MORGAN, WM. D.
MORRIS, COLES
MORRISON. HECTOR MORRISON, HECTOR MORTIMER, JOHN H. MORTIMER, JOHN H.
MORTON, LEVI P.
MOTLEY, J. M.
MOTT, WM. F., JR.
MOULTON, RODMAN G.
MUDGETT, B. F.
MUNN, O. D.
MURDOCK, URIEL A.
MURPHY, THOMAS
MURRAY, DAVID COLDEN
MURRAY, G. W.
MURRAY, LINDLEY

NASH, STEPHEN P. NATHAN, BENJ. NEWBOLD, GEORGE NEWTON, JAMES W. NICHOLS, EFFINGHAM H. NICHOLS, GEO. WARD NICOLL, HENRY NIEBUHR, CHARLES C. NORTON, H. G. NOTT, CHARLES C. NOTT, WILLIAM NOYES, GEORGE F.

OAKES, JOSIAH
OAKEY, W. F.
OCKERSHAUSEN, A. F.
OLMSTED, FREDERICK LAW
OPDYKE, GEORGE
OPDYKE, WM. S.
ORTON, WM.
OSBORN, WM. H.
OSGOOD, SAMUEL
OWEN, EDMUND C.
OWEN, T. J.

PAINE, A. G.
PAINE, JOHN
PALEN, GEORGE
PALMER, D. P.
PALMER, FRANCIS A.
PARISH, D.
PARISH, HENRY
PARKER, WILLARD
PARKIN, WM. W.
PARMLY, ELEAZAR
PARSONS, ARTHUR W., JR.
PARTRIDGE, CHAS.
PATTON, T. C. M.
PEARSON, ISAAC GREEN
PECK, JARED V.
PECKHAM, W. H.
PELL, ALFRED
PELL, JAMES K.
PENDEXTER, S. H.
PENFOLD, EDMUND
PETERS, GEO. A.
PETERS, G. C.
PETERS, S. T.
PETTEE, DANIEL LEWIS
PHELPS, JOHN J.
PIERSON, HENRY L
PIERSON, H. L., JR.
PIERSON, J. F.
PINKNEY, JOHN H.
PLACE, JAMES K.

PLATT, JOHN R.
POMEROY, J. N.
POST, ALFRED C.
POTTER, F. W.
POTTER, HOWARD
PRIESTLEY, JOHN
PRIME, FREDERICK
PUTNAM, GEORGE P.

QUINCY, JOHN W. QUINTARD, E. A. QUINTARD, G. W.

RANDOLPH, PETER F.
RATHBONE, ROBERT C.
RAYMOND, HENRY J.
RAYNOR, WM. H.
REED, EDGAR
REID, JAMES
REMSEN, ROBERT G.
REYNOLDS, J. C. C.
REYNOLDS, PHILIP
REYNOLDS, PHILIP
REYNOLDS, S. W.
RICHARDSON, WM. T.
ROBBINS, GEO. S.
ROBBINS, HENRY A.
ROBERT, CHRISTOPHER R.
ROBERTS, FREDERICK
ROBINSON, E.
ROGERTS, FREDERICK
ROBINSON, E.
ROGERS, EDWARD P.
ROGERS, JONES
ROGERS, JONES
ROGERS, JONES
ROGERS, JONES
ROGEVELT, ROBERT B.
ROOSEVELT, ROBERT B.
ROOSEVELT, THEODORE
ROSS, WM. B.
RUGGLES, SAMUEL B.
RUSSELL, J. D.
RUSSELL, SALBM T.

SACKETT, ADAM T. SACKETT, JAMES H. SALTONSTALL, F. G. SANDS, ANDREW H. SANDS, AUSTIN L. SANDS, WM. R.

SANFORD, E. S. SANFORD, J. C. SARGENT, G. H. SATTERLEE, G. C. SATTERLEE, GEORGE B. SAULNIER, HENRY E. SAXTON, JOHN Schieffelin, Eugene Schieffelin, Jas. L. Schieffelin, Samuel B. Schieffelin, Sidney A. Schieffelin, Wm. H. SCOTT, WILLIAM Scudder, Linus SEDGWICK, HENRY D.
SELIGMAN, WM.
SEWALL, J. N.
SHANNON, THOMAS W. SHARP, BENJAMIN SHAW, FRANCIS GEO. SHAW, SAMUEL SHELDON, HENRY
SHEPARD, ELLIOTT F.
SHERMAN, E. S.
SHERMAN, F. R.
SHERMAN, ISAAC SHERWOOD, JOHN H. SHERWOOD, LORENZO SHETHAR, SAMUEL SHULTZ, J. S. SILSBY, JOHN SKEEL, ROSWELL SKIDDY, FRANCIS SKIDMORE, SAMUEL T. SMITH, AUGUSTUS F. SMITH, CHARLES D. SMITH, CHARLES S. SMITH, HANBURY SMITH, ISAAC T. SMITH, JAMES A. SMITH, JAMES D. SMITH, N. DENTON SMITH, SAMUEL S. SMITH, THOMAS E.
SMITH, U. J.
SMITH, WALTER M.
SMITH, WM. A. SMYTHE, HENRY A. SMYTHE, J. KENNEDY Sparkman, Jas. D.

SPARKMAN, J. T.

SPOFFORD, P. N. SPROULS, SAMUEL E. STAGG, CHAS. T. STEBBINS, CHARLES STEBBINS, RUSSELL, JR. STEDWELL, J. H.
STEPHENSON, C. F.
STEPHENSON, GEO. S.
STEVENS, BRYAN K., JR. STEVENS, C. A. STEVENS, JOHN A. STEWARD, JOHN STEWART, ALEX. T. STILLMAN, THOMAS E. STONE, GEO. E.
STONE, JOHN O.
STONE, WM. OLIVER
STOUGHTON, EDWIN W.
STREW, WILLIAM W. STREW, WILLIAM W.
STRONG, CHARLES E.
STRONG, GEO. T.
STRONG, OLIVER S.
STRONG, P. REMSEN
STRONG, WM. K.
STUART, ROBERT L.
STURGES, ARTHUR P.
STURGES, EDWARD
STURGES, FREDERICK
STURGES, JONATHAN STURGES, JONATHAN STURGES, THOMAS T. STURGIS, APPLETON STURGIS, RUSSELL STUYVESANT, ROBERT SULLIVAN, CHARLES SULLIVAN, NAHUM SUYDAM, D. LYDIG SUYDAM, JAMES A. SWAN, EDWARD H. SWAN, FREDERICK G. SWAN, OTIS D. SWAN, WILLIAM H. SWIFT, H. H. SWIFT, JAMES T.

Taber, Edmund
Tailer, Henry A.
Tailer, Edward N., Jr.
Talbot, Chas. N.
Thompson, Henry G.
Thompson, J. P.
Thompson, WM. D.

THORNE, RICHARD J.
TIFFANY, CHARLES L.
TITUS, JAS. H.
TOMPKINS, WM. G.
TORREY, S. W.
TOUSEY, SINCLAIR
TUCKER, RICHARD SANDS
TUCKERMAN, ERNST
TUCKERMAN, HERRY T.
TUCKERMAN, JOSEPH
TUCKERMAN, LUCIUS
TWOMBLY, HORATIO N.
TYLER, CHRISTOPHER
TYLER, E. L.
TYNG, MORRIS A.
TYNG, S. H.
TYNG, C. R.

Underhill, Geo. E. Usher, Robert, Jr.

VAIL, HENRY F
VALENTINE, A. A.
VAN BUREN, THOMAS B.
VANDEVENTER, WM.
VAN DUZER, S.
VAN NORT, GEORGE M.
VAN NOSTRAND, D.
VAN RENSSELAER, ALEX.
VAN WAGENEN, C. D.
VAN WART, IRVING
VAN WINKLE, EDGAR S.
VARNUM, JOSEPH B., JR.
VAUGHAN, DANIEL W.
VAUX, CALVERT
VERMILYE, W. M.
VERMILYE, WASHINGTON R.

WADE, ELIAS
WAKEMAN, ABRAM
WALES, SALEM H.
WALKER, EDWARD
WALKER, MARCUS
WALL, CHARLES
WALL, E. S.
WARD, CHARLES H.
WARD, GEO. CABOT
WARD, HENRY G.
WARD, HENRY HALL
WARD, LEBBEUS B.
WARNER, H. S.

WARNER, L. T.
WARNER, SAM. A.
WARREN, EDWARD J.
WARREN, RICHARD
WATTS, RIDLEY
WEBB, JOHN B.
WEBB, WILLIAM H.
WEBSTER, HORACE
WEEKS, JOHN A.
WESLEY, E. B.
WESTERFIELD, JOSEPH H.
WESTON, HENRY
WESTON, R. W.
WESTON, SULLIVAN H.
WETMORE, GEORGE C.
WETMORE, GEORGE C.
WHITAKER, THOMAS A.
WHITE, HOLLIS
WHITE, JOHN C.
WHITE, JOHN T.
WHITEHEAD, CHAS. E.
WICKS, GEORGE A.
WIGHAM, THOS. M.

WILDER, GEORGE
WILKES, GEORGE
WILKINS, G. M.
WILLIAMS, JOHN E.
WILLIAMS, JOHN S.
WILSON, E.
WINCHESTER, LOCKE W.
WINSLOW, JAMES
WINTERTON, W. B.
WINTHROP, HEERRY R.
WINTHROP, ROBERT
WISNER, WM. H.
WOLFE, JOHN DAVID
WOOD, EDWARD
WOOD, OLIVER E.
WORCESTER, H. E.
WORCESTER, H. E.
WORTH, FRANK W.
WRIGHT, ALBERT W.
WRIGHT, J. BUTLER
WYETH, LEONARD J.
WYLIE, JOHN E.

Young, Thomas S.









